
Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 1, 2014 
1 

The Meeting of the Board of Public Works of the City of Onalaska was called to order at 6:30 1 
p.m. on Tuesday, July 1, 2014.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced and a notice 2 
posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Ald. Jack Pogreba, Financial Services 5 
Director/Treasurer Fred Buehler, Ald. Jim Bialecki, City Engineer Jarrod Holter 6 
 7 
Also Present:  Assistant City Engineer Kevin Schubert, Ald. Erik Sjolander, Ald. Bob Muth, 8 
Parks and Recreation Director Dan Wick, Buildings Manager Brian Babiash 9 
 10 
Excused Absence:  Mayor Joe Chilsen 11 
 12 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from previous meeting 13 
 14 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Jarrod, to approve the minutes from the previous meeting as 15 
printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 16 
 17 
On voice vote, motion carried. 18 
 19 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 20 
 21 
Ald. Pogreba called for anyone wishing to provide public input. 22 
 23 
Tina Antony, Housing Manager at Springbrook Assisted Living 24 
861 Critter Court 25 
Onalaska 26 
 27 
“What we have on the agenda tonight is to allow parking on Critter Court rather than just in our 28 
parking lot.  What Springbrook has done is we’ve opened our facility to be more of a community 29 
building rather than just an assisted living facility.  We offer space to the Onalaska Park and Rec 30 
yoga program four days a week.  We also have over 200 visits a month from the area Warm 31 
Water Therapy Club because we have the only therapy-certified pool in the area that is 92 32 
degrees.  We also offer our facility to the Coulee Region Memory Café that offers support to 33 
caregivers to those with Alzheimer’s.  That offers space to about 20 to 25 people per month.  We 34 
also have partnered with Welshire Capital, and they offer their eldercare workshops every other 35 
month.  They host about 35 people at that time, and it’s twice per week each month.  We really 36 
are in need of some additional parking.  Our thought is to have parking on the far side of the 37 
street so it won’t interfere with incoming and outgoing emergency vehicles.  It’s a dead-end 38 
street, it’s a wide street and we’d really like that to happen.  Your consideration is appreciated.” 39 
 40 
Ald. Pogreba called three times for anyone else wishing to provide public input and closed that 41 
portion of the meeting. 42 
Reviewed 7/2/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 1, 2014 
2 

 43 
Consideration and possible action on the following items: 44 

 45 
Item 4 – Review and consideration of altering parking restrictions along Critter Court 46 
 47 
Jarrod said Springbrook Assisted Living is requesting the alteration of the parking restrictions 48 
along Critter Court.  Jarrod noted that board members’ packets include the minutes from the 49 
November 30, 2004 Board of Public Works meeting when parking was prohibited on the west 50 
side of Critter Court.  Board members’ packets also include the minutes from the January 3, 2006 51 
Board of Public Works meeting when parking was prohibited on the east side of Critter Court.  52 
Jarrod noted parking was prohibited on the east side of the road due to difficulties with the 53 
driveways.  Jarrod told board members there was an individual with a boat who wished to visit a 54 
Springbrook resident, but could not park his vehicle near the facility. 55 
 56 
Jarrod said, “In looking at this, part of the reason that no parking went on the west side of Critter 57 
Court during 2004 is because of the Gundersen Lutheran Administrative Center that sits right 58 
next to Critter Court.  The parking lot they have next to it fills up very fast, so what happens is 59 
Critter Court becomes preferred parking for those individuals who work there.  And being that’s 60 
a public street, we can’t control who parks there.  With that, I guess I don’t have any objection to 61 
opening up parking on the west side of Critter Court.  But in talking to Alderman Muth, [he] 62 
came up with a good suggestion:  If we would open it up we should have two-hour parking.  But 63 
if we did open it up to two-hour parking, then it would need enforcement because the individuals 64 
who work at the administrative center would probably park it full.  If we just allowed it for 65 
parking all day long those employees will probably get those spaces before anyone early in the 66 
morning.  They would fill those spaces on the street before they would have a chance to use them 67 
at Springbrook.  I think the road width there is 37 feet wide.  I would not support parking on both 68 
sides, but I think if we allow parking on the west side there are no driveways over there, and I 69 
think the emergency vehicle access would still be able to get down into that area if we did have a 70 
situation.” 71 
 72 
Ald. Bialecki asked Jarrod to ask Fire Chief Don Dominick if he believes his vehicles would 73 
have sufficient room to maneuver.  Ald. Bialecki also asked if there would be sufficient room to 74 
maneuver if there was snow removal and emergency vehicles. 75 
 76 
Jarrod said there would be 33 feet of clearance on a 37-foot street.  Seven feet would be lost to a 77 
parking stall, and 26 feet would remain.  Jarrod said, “Even if you lose a couple of feet to the 78 
snowbank and the curbline you should still have two, 12-foot passable lanes for two vehicles 79 
meeting on there.” 80 
 81 
Ald. Pogreba said he also was going to suggest limiting parking on Critter Court to two hours 82 
and said he wants to examine how this would be enforced.  Ald. Pogreba said he believes $15 83 

Reviewed 7/2/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 1, 2014 
3 

citations are issued to individuals who exceed the time limit and stated he believes employees 84 
who receive citations would understand not to park there.  Ald. Pogreba asked if perhaps a public 85 
hearing should be held on the matter. 86 
 87 
Jarrod said this can be done if the board so chooses. 88 
 89 
Ald. Pogreba asked Tina if she believes a two-hour parking limit would be sufficient for 90 
individuals who visit Springbrook. 91 
 92 
Tina said she believes a two-hour parking limit would be sufficient, but added both she and 93 
Springbrook representatives are hoping to allow staff to park on Critter Court.  Springbrook 94 
employees work eight-hour shifts.  Tina said Springbrook hopes the city will allow parking from 95 
6 a.m. until 10 p.m. and noted there are approximately 10 to 15 employee vehicles present from 96 
6 a.m. until 4 p.m.  Tina said staff would be told to park on the street beginning at 6 a.m., and 97 
also at 2 p.m. for the employees working a later shift.  Tina noted public visitors might spend 98 
more time parking on the street than is allowed and said it is up to the board to decide what is 99 
appropriate. 100 
 101 
Fred said he is unsure how many vehicles could park from Springbrook to close to the end of the 102 
cul-de-sac on Critter Court.  Fred said he does not believe anyone will park in this area if 103 
Gundersen is his or her destination. 104 
 105 
Jarrod noted several employees park in the ramp and said, “It’s fine to open it up for parking all 106 
the time, but I have a feeling they’re going to beat the Springbrook people to those spots.  I think 107 
that’s the reality of it.” 108 
 109 
Ald. Pogreba asked what would happen if Springbrook’s employees carpool from the ramp to 110 
Springbrook.  Doing so would perhaps alleviate some of the congestion. 111 
 112 
Fred said he favors a two-hour parking limit on one side of Critter Court as long as it is enforced. 113 
 114 
Jarrod said he favors opening parking on the west side of Critter Court and that the board must 115 
determine how long motorists will be allowed to park. 116 
 117 
Motion by Ald. Pogreba, second by Ald. Bialecki, to hold a public hearing regarding altering 118 
parking restrictions along Critter Court. 119 
 120 
On voice vote, motion carried. 121 
 122 
Fred told Jarrod this item likely will need to be placed on the July 8 Common Council meeting 123 
agenda. 124 

Reviewed 7/2/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 1, 2014 
4 

 125 
Ald. Pogreba said the public hearing will be held at the August 5 Board of Public Works meeting 126 
if the Common Council approves this item on July 8. 127 
 128 
Item 5 – Review and consideration of no parking rule on State Trunk Highway 35/Second 129 
Avenue North from Locust Street to Poplar Street 130 
 131 
Jarrod noted board members’ packets include a map that outlines the area of proposed no 132 
parking.  Currently there are no parking regulations in effect on 2nd Avenue/STH 35 up to Locust 133 
Street, and also beyond Poplar Street.  Jarrod said that when STH 35 was redesigned and 134 
installed by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation the option was to install the center-left, 135 
two-way left-turn lane.  This was done for safety reasons.  The State of Wisconsin mandates that 136 
a bicycle lane be added through state statutes.  Jarrod noted it was at this time discussions had 137 
taken place as to whether or not to add parking.  Jarrod also noted the State of Wisconsin 138 
informed him the city would have to add parking at its expense.  In addition, more right-of-way 139 
would have been required.  Jarrod said this was cost-prohibitive, so no parking was added to the 140 
street.  Jarrod said that while there have been few difficulties he wants to ensure that it is clearly 141 
stated there is no parking on 2nd Avenue North/STH 35 from Locust Street to Poplar Street. 142 
 143 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said there are no rules stating that a public 144 
hearing must be held, stating, “Typically we do if we think it’s something new, but I think this 145 
was hashed over when we did the whole public input on [STH] 35.  We actually sent letters out 146 
to the people asking the residents if they wanted parking and if they would be willing to pay for 147 
it as an assessment.” 148 
 149 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said the area in question is not physically capable of 150 
handling parking on the street as it currently is. 151 
 152 
Motion by Fred, second by Jarrod, to forward to the Administrative and Judiciary Committee a 153 
no-parking policy on State Trunk Highway 35/Second Avenue North from Locust Street to 154 
Poplar Street. 155 
 156 
On voice vote, motion carried. 157 
 158 
Item 6 – Review and consideration of boiler replacement at Omni Center with associated 159 
professional design services 160 
 161 
Jarrod said the existing Arena No. 1 boiler at the Omni Center sits in front of the building, and 162 
also sits with an outside entrance that comes in to the boiler room.  The boiler was installed with 163 
the Omni Center and now is more than 20 years old.  Jarrod said the boiler has reached the end 164 
of its useful life, is not functioning properly and was not installed properly.  Jarrod described the 165 

Reviewed 7/2/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 1, 2014 
5 

boiler of having reached the “point of physical failure” and said he had examined the boiler with 166 
both Brian and Dan.  Jarrod said HSR Associates from La Crosse had been solicited for an 167 
opinion on how to address the situation.  Jarrod stated that while there is an option to replace the 168 
boiler in place, he does not believe this is the best option.  Jarrod noted the options are included 169 
in board members’ packets and said, “Putting it back in place with no redundancy I feel would be 170 
not the proper thing to do at this time.  We went through three options of replacement for the 171 
boiler, and we looked at actually adding a third boiler in the back of the building where the 172 
newer mechanical room was installed as part of Arena No. 2.  The piping for the hot water would 173 
have to be extended.  But with this option, we could actually add a condensing-style boiler which 174 
would increase our efficiencies and uses of the boiler system.” 175 
 176 
Jarrod said he had noted in the design memo that the city could save approximately $5,000 per 177 
year on gas and electricity costs if the city chooses to utilize a “better efficiency, all in one room, 178 
condensing-style boiler.”  Jarrod noted Dan had taken this item before the Parks and Recreation 179 
Board for approval at its June 23 meeting, and also noted that the Capital Improvements Budget 180 
included $200,000 for a chiller system for the Omni Center.  Jarrod said replacing the chiller 181 
system will need to be reexamined and stated staff believes it is more imperative to replace the 182 
boiler and help it achieve the proper specifications.  Jarrod said staff recommends replacing the 183 
boiler and adding a third boiler in the rear Arena No. 2 mechanical room with a condensing unit. 184 
 185 
Ald. Pogreba asked if any consideration has been given to installing a heat reclaim system. 186 
 187 
Jarrod said that part of having a condensing-style unit boiler will perhaps allow for a heat reclaim 188 
system in the future once modifications are made. 189 
 190 
Brian said he was unaware that the heat recovery could be added to the boiler until he had 191 
spoken with an HSR representative.  Brian noted the HSR representative also said the Omni 192 
Center would not have to pay anything in its heating bill because it could heat all its hot water 193 
off the heat recovery off its chillers.  Brian said the HSR representative also told him this could 194 
be added to the boiler as part of a long-range plan.  Brian noted the set points on the current 195 
boilers are 150 degrees, which is the lowest possible setting, and two boilers are currently being 196 
run at 150 degrees in Arena No. 2.  Brian said this is a method that will attempt to decrease 197 
temperatures to 120 degrees.  This conceivably means the two boilers would not need to be run 198 
during the summer and only the high-efficiency boiler would need to be run at 120 degrees. 199 
 200 
Jarrod said the chiller system in the Omni Center will need further work to obtain the recovery 201 
Ald. Pogreba seeks. 202 
 203 
Ald. Pogreba said the heat recovery system would function with both the chiller and the boiler 204 
system. 205 
 206 

Reviewed 7/2/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 1, 2014 
6 

Brian noted that currently a heat recovery system that heats the ice arena floor is utilized.  The 207 
concrete is on top, the chilling system is beneath the concrete, and the heating system is beneath 208 
the chilling system. 209 
 210 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod said there is one boiler located at the front of 211 
the Omni Center for Arena No. 1.  Jarrod said one of the options in the HSR report is to replace 212 
this boiler.  Another option is to install a more high-efficiency boiler, and the third option is to 213 
install two boilers in the front of the building. There would be two separate mechanical rooms 214 
and two separate boiler areas. 215 
 216 
Jarrod said, “If we go with this option we’re suggesting, we’d dismantle the front boiler room 217 
entirely.  There is no boiler there anymore.  We’d run that piping to the rear mechanical room.  218 
We’d have space to add a third boiler next to the two that are there.  Now we’d have one 219 
mechanical room.  They’re all hooked together, and they can all work in conjunction and also 220 
redundant.  In case one goes down we’ve got two.  Hopefully not more than one goes down at a 221 
time.” 222 
 223 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod said the Parks and Recreation Board approved 224 
this item and it will go before the Common Council.  Jarrod noted the Parks and Recreation 225 
Board had approved an amount not to exceed $200,000, which includes the contingency and 226 
engineering.  Jarrod said he is proposing hiring HSR in an amount not to exceed $20,000 to 227 
design this, put it out for bid and then bring back the bids.  Jarrod expressed hope that the bids 228 
that are returned will be favorable and the work can be performed for the amount of money that 229 
has been budgeted.  The bids then would be approved at this time. 230 
 231 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Pogreba, to approve proceeding with the bids to replace 232 
the boiler at the Omni Center and hiring HSR Associates to design the plans and specifications 233 
for bidding. 234 
 235 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod said he believes the city is “good to go” with 236 
HSR Associates and stated, “This is a unique situation at the Omni Center because it’s not the 237 
building of a new facility.  It’s such retro work that it’s hard to get three engineers there and try 238 
to figure out which direction you’re going to go.  I think it’s going to be very confusing to get 239 
multiple prices.  I think this is a retrofit job that is custom in the building that I feel comfortable 240 
[with HSR].” 241 
 242 
On voice vote, motion carried. 243 
 244 
Item 7 – Review and consideration of Utility Department purchases 245 
 246 

A. Automatic flushing station 247 

Reviewed 7/2/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 1, 2014 
7 

 248 
Jarrod said this item was included within the budget and noted there have been difficulties 249 
keeping the chlorine residual up in the outer extents of the system.  Jarrod said the automatic 250 
flushing system likely would be placed somewhere in the vicinity of South Kinney Coulee Road 251 
and Valley View Drive.  The automatic flushing system would be hooked into the storm sewer, 252 
and when the chlorine residual drops below a certain level the flushing unit is activated and 253 
begins to move water.  Jarrod said a temporary unit was installed, but it flushes into the curbline.  254 
This automatic flushing system would function year-round; staff could obtain data from it; and it 255 
is a more permanent unit. 256 
 257 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to purchase an automatic flushing system from First 258 
Supply in the amount of $22,750. 259 
 260 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said he does not believe the flushing system 261 
will be hooked up to the SCADA system.  Jarrod said staff will manually obtain the information 262 
once a week or once every two weeks. 263 
 264 
On voice vote, motion carried. 265 
 266 

B. Trench box 267 
 268 
Jarrod said he is requesting the purchase of a trench box that is slightly used from Wisconsin 269 
Shoring Supply. 270 
 271 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve the purchase of a trench box from 272 
Wisconsin Shoring Supply in the amount of $12,600. 273 
 274 
On voice vote, motion carried. 275 
 276 

C. Lighting and heating upgrades at Well #7 & #8 277 
 278 
Jarrod noted there is a malfunctioning heater at Well #7 and #8, and also noted there are 30-year-279 
old electrical fixtures that need to be replaced. 280 
 281 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve the purchase equipment for lighting and 282 
heating upgrades at Well #7 and #8 from P&T Electric in the amount of $5,844. 283 
 284 
On voice vote, motion carried. 285 
 286 

D. Door and window replacement at Well #7 & #8 287 
 288 

Reviewed 7/2/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 1, 2014 
8 

Jarrod noted the window between the chemical room and the building is starting to etch from the 289 
chemicals. 290 
 291 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve door and window replacement at Well #7 292 
and #8 by La Crosse Glass Co. in the amount of $7,444.13. 293 
 294 
On voice vote, motion carried. 295 
 296 
Item 8 – Review and consideration of geotechnical services for renovations at Well #9 297 
 298 
Jarrod noted that Chosen Valley Testing had submitted the low bid at $3,065.  However, Jarrod 299 
said Chosen Valley had not included a couple of sieve analyses that might need to be done.  300 
Jarrod said Braun Intertec had submitted a bid of $4,530 and requested that Chosen Valley 301 
Testing be hired in an amount not to exceed $3,500 so some items may be added if staff believes 302 
they are needed. 303 
 304 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Jarrod, to approve hiring Chosen Valley Testing to perform 305 
geotechnical services for renovations at Well #9 in an amount not to exceed $3,500. 306 
 307 
On voice vote, motion carried. 308 
 309 
Item 9 – Pay Estimates:  Strand Associates, Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., MSA 310 
Professional Services, Inc., Mathy Construction, Haas Sons, Winona Mechanical, A-1 311 
Excavating, Wapasha Construction, State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation and 312 
any other contractor/developer  313 
 314 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 315 
MONTHLY ESTIMATES 316 

 317 
July 1, 2014 318 

 319 
    Original 320 
    Contract   Change   Paid to  Due this 321 
Contractor   Amount   Orders   Date   Estimate 322 
 323 
1.  STRAND ASSOCIATES (01321) 324 
     Theater Road Traffic Signal 325 
     Construction/Engineering 326 
     Estimate #4  $   8,500.00    $     -        $   4,908.27  $   534.29 327 
 328 
 329 

Reviewed 7/2/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 1, 2014 
9 

2.  ST. JOSEPH CONSTRUCTION 330 
     Theater Road Traffic Signal 331 
     Construction 332 
     Estimate #3  $   747,906.54   $     -       $   290,363.68  $   410,152.56 333 
 334 
3.  SEH INC. (01375) 335 
     Pralle Center Drive Study Update 336 
     Study 337 
     Estimate #3  $   13,000.00     $     -      $   6,500.00 $   1,950.00 338 
 339 
4.  WAPASHA CONSTRUCTION 340 
     2013 Reservoir Improvements 341 
     Construction 342 
     Estimate #6  $   294,991.99     $     -       $   132,596.66 $   90,516.03 343 
 344 
5.  WINONA MECHANICAL 345 
     Check Valve Project 346 
     Construction 347 
     Estimate #2    $   321,543.00     $     -       $   146,198.83 $  104,968.35 348 
 349 
6.  MATHY CONSTRUCTION 350 
     East Main Street 351 
     Construction 352 
     Estimate #2    $   992,959.90     $     ($59,930) $   47,153.68 $   171,875.90 353 
 354 
7.  CHIPPEWA CONCRETE SERVICES 355 
     Marcou Road Sidewalk Project 356 
     Construction 357 
     Estimate #2    $   200,685.00     $     -       $   53,712.53 $   129,709.60 358 
 359 
8.  KREIBICH LANDSCAPING LLC 360 
     2014 Spring Tree Planting 361 
     Construction 362 
     Estimate #2    $   39,235.00     $     -       $   15,859.00 $   21,632.13 363 
 364 
9.  AYRES ASSOCIATES (02632) 365 
     I-90 Sanitary Sewer 366 
     Design 367 
     Estimate #8    $   35,000.00     $     -       $   32,680.53 $   422.08 368 
 369 
 370 
 371 
Reviewed 7/2/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, July 1, 2014 
10 

10.  PEMBER COMPANIES 372 
     Misc. Concrete Project 373 
     Construction 374 
     Estimate #1    $   94,333.50    $     -        $   - $   51,099.41 375 
 376 
11.  WEISER BROTHERS GENERAL CONTR. 377 
     Salt Shed 378 
     Construction 379 
     Estimate #1    $   43,024.00    $     -       $   - $   43,884.00 380 
 381 
12.  BLUE STEM FORESTRY CONSULTING 382 
     Emerald Ash Borer 383 
     Study 384 
     Estimate #2   $   3,700.00     $     -       $   4,400.00 $   500.00 385 
 386 
13.  SEH INC. (01375) 387 
     Private Watermain Loop 388 
     Design 389 
     Estimate #7    $   16,000.00   $     -       $   15,054.89 $   945.11 390 
 391 
14.  SEH INC. (01375) 392 
     Reservoir Upgrades 393 
     Design 394 
     Estimate #5    $   1,850.00    $     -       $   20,907.55 $   2,922.24 395 
 396 
15.  STRAND ASSOCIATES INC. 397 
     Well #7 – Reconstruction/Filter 398 
     Design 399 
     Estimate #1    $   36,900.00    $     -       $   -  $   10,650.00 400 
 401 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Pogreba, to pay the 15 estimates as printed and on file. 402 
 403 
On voice vote, motion carried. 404 
 405 
Adjournment  406 
 407 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Pogreba, to adjourn at 7:00 p.m. 408 
 409 
On voice vote, motion carried. 410 
 411 
 412 
Recorded by: 413 
 414 
Kirk Bey 415 
Reviewed 7/2/14 
 


